

Western Virginia Workforce Development Board Executive Committee Meeting Minutes

September 20, 2018, 9:00 a.m. Western Virginia Workforce Development Board Offices 313 Luck Avenue SW Roanoke, VA 24106

Committee Members	Present
Shawn Hildebrand, Chair	X
Phil Peters, Vice-Chair	X
Casey Nicely, Treasurer	X
Crystal Hall, Committee Chair	X
Joyce Kessinger, At-Large	
Staff Members	Present
Morgan Romeo	Х
Leah Gibson	Х
Candace Martin	Х

### Call to Order

Shawn Hildebrand called the meeting of the Executive Committee to order at 9:00 AM and welcomed the members of the committee.

#### Public Comment

There were no comments from the public.

## Approval of Executive Committee Minutes from May 24, 1018

Shawn Hildebrand asked the members of the Executive Committee to review the minutes from the last meeting as presented in the packet.

**Executive Committee Action:** A motion was made by Phil Peters to accept the minutes from May 24<sup>th</sup> as presented. The motion was seconded by Casey Nicely. The motion carried.

## Approval of Committee Appointments

Shawn Hildebrand noted that members of the Committees of the Board (Finance and Workforce Center and Services) needed to be appointed/re-appointed as a first order of business. Morgan Romeo noted that the composition of the Finance Committee remained the same as the previous Program Year, except for Casey Nicely being the Chair to replace Joe Brinley. The composition of the Workforce Center and Services Committee changed significantly to add new members to the committee from partners in the workforce system. While these new members were not members of the Workforce Development Board, the bylaws of the Workforce Development Board permitted additional members beyond the Board. By adding additional members, the Board would



be fulfilling a part of the work plan with the new United Way OnRAMP funding received in partnership with Total Action for Progress and would also be able to gain key insight by partner programs into how to reach hard to serve populations and improve delivery of service. The Executive Committee agreed to monitor the new composition to ensure that the input from the additional partners was valuable and constructive.

**Executive Committee Action:** A motion was made by Phil Peters to approve the composition of the Finance Committee and the Workforce Center and Services Committee as presented. The motion was seconded by Casey Nicely. The motion carried.

## **Directors Report**

## Pathways Business Services Specialist Funding

Morgan Romeo reported that since the last Board meeting, staff had reached out to the New River/Mt. Rogers Workforce Development Board, the fiscal agent for the Pathways to the American Dream grant, to get further clarification on the Business Services Specialist. The question at hand was whether or not the fiscal agent would allow for funding for the Business Services Specialist position to be awarded to the community colleges in the region (Virginia Western and/or Dabney Lancaster) to support existing business development staff. The New River/Mt. Rogers Workforce Development Board responded that they would not feel comfortable with this approach, as the funding would be allocated to a specific training provider instead of a neutral party. Staff recommended that with this response, funding should be allocated to Ross IES to fund the existing Business Services Representative and further leverage the WIOA Title I funds.

**Executive Committee Action:** A motion was made by Casey Nicely to recommend to the Board to award the Pathways funding to Ross IES to supplement the Business Services Representative position. The motion was seconded by Phil Peters. The motion was carried by a roll call vote.

## WIOA Title Q4 Performance Update

Morgan Romeo referenced the performance update for Quarter 4 as presented in the packet. Due to the change in performance requirements, there is no 80% threshold that would provide flexibility to the WIOA Title I Service Provider in meeting performance. Staff are continuing to request guidance on performance from the Virginia Community College System and have not been able to nail down in the law the correct language. Based on the verbal guidance provided, Rescare Workforce Services did not meet five of the measures, which would affect their profit payout. It was also noted that this performance is only for Quarter 4, and a final report is pending from the state. Crystal Hall requested that a footnote be put at the bottom of the report noting that it is only Quarter 4 and a future final report was forthcoming.



**Executive Committee Action**: A motion was made by Casey Nicely to accept the performance report. A second was made by Phil Peters. The motion carried.

#### Roanoke City Council Meeting

Morgan Romeo reported that at the last Roanoke City Council meeting on September 4, 2018, during the public comment period, one of the area's training providers, Black Diamond School of Beauty, spoke about their challenges with the workforce system. Board staff reached out to City Manager, Bob Cowell, after the meeting to set up time to discuss how to remedy the situation. Bob requested that Board staff present to the City Council at their morning work session on October 4, 2018 to inform the City Council members about the workforce system, the goals and required performance, and how City Council can assist in furthering the mission of WIOA.

### GE Energy-Salem Update

Morgan Romeo reported that the Board staff and the staff at the local Virginia Career Works – Roanoke Center were working diligently with the employees and management staff at GE in Salem, VA. Morgan reported that in late August, staff from the Virginia Employment Commission, Rapid Response Unit, WIOA Title I staff from Ross IES, and Virginia Western Community College met with all of the 265 employees who will be laid off in Summer 2019. Initially it was thought that most individuals currently employed would want to remain through Summer 2019 to retain their pension and benefits, but it was discovered that 1/3 of the employees would not be eligible for these benefits and were already looking for work. With this fact, staff will be organizing career fairs and other events to help the GE workers find employment in the region and remain as residents.

Morgan Romeo also reported that the layoff/closure event had triggered an application for Trade Act certification through the US Department of Labor. Recently the application as approved and this means that all of the current employees plus an additional 50 employees from a layoff in March 2018 are eligible for additional income support and training funding. Morgan reminded the committee members that because of this, any person that takes advantage of the Trade Act funds will be required to co-enroll in the WIOA Title I Dislocated Worker program, which will drive up enrollments. This could cause a burden for staff at the Roanoke Center.

#### GO Virginia Project

Morgan Romeo reported that the GO Virginia project awarded to the Region 2000 Workforce Development Board, the New River/Mt. Rogers Workforce Development Board and the Western Virginia Workforce Development Board was finalized with the Department of Housing and Community Development. Morgan noted that the Region 2000 Workforce Development Board is the fiscal agent/grant recipient for the funds, and



without a Memorandum of Understanding, Board staff was uncomfortable spending funds on existing worker training or the career expo. Morgan said that hopefully at the December meeting she would bring an MOU to the Board for approval.

### CLEO Consortium Update

Morgan Romeo reported that a new set of CLEO Consortium members were appointed to the CLEO over the past couple of months. Morgan noted that several of the localities had local elected officials that were very interested in the workforce development system and would add value to the conversations from the local level.

### New Board Member Update

Morgan Romeo reported that there were several vacancies on the Workforce Development Board, which included 2 business representatives from Franklin County, 1 business representative in the City of Roanoke, 1 business representative in the City of Salem, 1 Career and Technical Education representative and 1 Title II Adult Education representative. Board staff have been working with the localities and applicable organizations to notify of the vacancies and have also posted the vacancy on the website. Staff have received several nominations already and anticipate receiving more prior to the next CLEO meeting on October 17<sup>th</sup> where new members will be appointed.

## Professional Development Plan & Program of Work Update

Morgan Romeo referenced the program of work and professional development plan in the packet and noted that the Executive Committee would be referencing these documents over the coming year to note progress. Morgan said that she would report to the Executive Committee at the next meeting to talk about new goals and progress. Shawn Hildebrand noted that these were both things that the Board asked for when the new Executive Director was hired, so it was important to review on a quarterly basis.

## Old Business

## Franklin Center Additional Funding Request

Shawn Hildebrand reminded the Executive Committee that at the last Board meeting, a request was made by Kathy Hodges, Executive Director of The Franklin Center for Advanced Enterprise and Learning for an additional \$10,000 to help cover the costs of the Resource Room Specialist/Receptionist position at the Center. Morgan Romeo noted that during the closeout of the previous program year, there was additional carryforward that was brought from the last year that could be used to support the position, but that it would be important for the Board to ensure that the position was performing duties associated and allowable under the Title I programs. The Executive Committee noted that there was confusion regarding the position's duties and that the position should be cost allocated among all of the partners at the Center instead of



supplemented by WIOA Title I funds. Several members of the Executive Committee noted that the request should be reviewed by Franklin County.

**Executive Committee Action**: A motion was made by Phil Peters to deny the request for additional funding from The Franklin Center. The motion was seconded by Crystal Hall. The motion was carried by roll call vote.

The Executive Committee noted that a letter signed by Shawn Hildebrand as Chair would be sent to Kathy Hodges and Brent Robertson.

#### Board Staff Office Location

Shawn Hildebrand reminded the Executive Committee that at the last Board meeting, it was requested that staff investigate moving Board staff into the Roanoke Center to eliminate duplicative costs of rent. Morgan Romeo noted that she had reviewed the details surrounding the location of Board staff at the Roanoke Valley-Alleghany Regional Commission, the value of being co-located with the fiscal agent of the Board, and how a potential co-location of Board staff at the Roanoke Center could be construed. Morgan Romeo stated that moving out of the Roanoke Valley-Alleghany Regional Commission building suddenly would damage the relationship with the fiscal agent in the future, which could not be afforded at this time. Morgan Romeo also noted that Board staff must have a division in labor as by law they are not allowed to provide direct services to participants or implement WIOA Title I programs. By being co-located at the Roanoke Center, the division between Board staff and the WIOA Title I Service Provider would become blurred and could present problems for the future. Staff also noted that the space at the Roanoke Center was being arranged to where no extra offices for the Title I Service Provider were being paid for out of the federal funds.

**Executive Committee Action**: A motion was made by Phil Peters to take no further action on staff office location at this time. The motion was seconded by Crystal Hall. The motion carried.

#### New business

#### One Stop Operator Contract

Morgan Romeo referenced the One-Stop Operator Contract that was included in the packet for the Committee's review. Morgan noted that the contract has been reviewed by Ross IES and Board staff and was ready for approval by the Committee. Morgan Romeo noted that the terms and conditions of the contract were the same as the terms and conditions for the Title I Service Provider contract for Adult, Dislocated Worker, and Youth programs.



**Executive Committee Action:** A motion was made by Casey Nicely to approve the One-Stop Operator Contract. The motion was seconded by Phil Peters. The motion carried.

# WIOA Title 1 Performance Negotiations

Morgan Romeo referenced the performance negotiation process in the packet for the Executive Committee to review. Board staff are in the process of reviewing the proposed levels by the Virginia Community College System but that there were several performance measures that were being asked to increase significantly. Board staff will be providing data and information to the state to ask for a reduction in these levels, and a final performance negotiation would come back to the Board in October.

## Blue Ridge Region Strategic Planning

Shawn Hildebrand stated that due to the past three years of funding reduction, the change in WIOA Title I Service Provider, and many other variables, it was an opportune time to review the operations of the Board in the region. The region will continue to face obstacles to filling current and new jobs in the region and the Board activities need to be supportive of economic development efforts in the region. In order to ensure that our region is proactive, by bringing in a third-party to review the operations of the region, including the three Virginia Career Works Centers, to ensure that a core operation is established that can expand and contract as needed is critical. Morgan Romeo noted that the Board went through a large strategic planning process through the development of the Local Plan, but those goals need to be revisited and ensure that they are attainable under the new circumstances. The Executive Committee asked if Board staff had recommendations on third-party consultants with experience in the workforce system. Morgan noted that there were several that came to mind and that Board staff would contact them and bring a proposal back to the Executive Committee at the next meeting for review. Morgan noted that the cost may be around \$5,000.

#### **Other Business**

There was no other business.

#### **Adjournment**

Shawn Hildebrand adjourned the meeting at 11:01 a.m.

Chairman

Date